ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON M LI TARY AND
VETERANS' AFFAI RS
January 29, 2002
3:08 p.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Chair
Representative Beverly Masek
Representative Li sa Murkowski
Representative Joe G een
Representati ve Pete Kott
Representative Sharon Ci ssna
Representati ve Joe Hayes

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Ri chard Foster
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 20
Relating to declaring Septenber 11, 2002, as Energency Service
Provi ders and Arned Forces Appreciation Day.

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 31

Relating to requesting the United States Congress to propose an
anendnent to the Constitution of the United States that would
address energency appointnents to and powers of the United
St at es Senat e.

- MOVED CSHIR 31(M.V) OUT OF COWM TTEE
PREVI OUS ACTI ON
BI LL: HCR 20

SHORT TITLE: SEPT 11 DAY OF REMEMBRANCE
SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE( S) STEVENS

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -1- January 29, 2002



Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/ 14/ 02 1946 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME -
REFERRALS

01/ 14/ 02 1946 (H MLV

01/ 14/ 02 1946 (H) REFERRED TO M.V

01/ 29/ 02 (H) M.V AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HJR 31
SHORT TI TLE: POAERS OF US SEN EMERGENCY APPOI NTMENTS
SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE( S) OGAN

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/ 16/ 02 1968 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 16/ 02 1968 (H M.V, STA

01/ 29/ 02 (H M.V AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE GARY STEVENS

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 428

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of HCR 20.

REPRESENTATI VE SCOTT OGAN

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 108

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of HIR 31.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-6, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR MKE CHENAULT called the House Special Commttee on
Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs neeting to order at 3:08 p.m
Representatives Chenault, G een, Cissna, and Hayes were present
at the call to order; Representatives Masek (who was present for
the initial roll <call) and Kott arrived soon thereafter.
Representati ve Murkowski arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HCR 20 - SEPT 11 DAY OF REMEMBRANCE

Nunmber 0099

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 2- January 29, 2002



CHAI R CHENAULT announced the first order of business, HOUSE
CONCURRENT RESCLUTION NO. 20, Relating to declaring Septenber
11, 2002, as Emergency Service Providers and Armed Forces
Appr eci ati on Day.

Nunmber 0168

REPRESENTATI VE GARY STEVENS, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor
of HCR 20, explained that Septenber 11, 2001, will go down as an
inportant nonent in United States history. The cataclysmc
events brought out both the worst in people - from the
terrorists who caused so nany deaths - and the best - from the
energency service personnel who showed trenmendous courage,
dedi cation, and sacrifice. Representative Stevens enphasized
the inportance of honoring those heroes and not forgetting them
He indicated that many Al askans have been anong those involved
since the initial terrorist attacks.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS expl ained that HCR 20 asks the governor
to declare Septenber 11, 2002, as Energency Service Providers
and Arned Forces Appreciation Day in Al aska; the purpose is for
Al askans to honor and pay respect to the firefighters,
paranedi cs, police officers, and nenbers of the mlitary who
responded to the World Trade Center tragedy and who continue to
stand by, ready to serve, every day.

Number 0324

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN noted that many volunteers not associated
with either of these groups have pitched in as well. He asked
whet her there was a reason they weren't included.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said no; it is a good point. He offered
to add volunteers, if desired.

Nunmber 0369

REPRESENTATI VE =~ MURKOWEKI asked  whet her an armed forces
recognition day already on the books recognizes the contribution
fromthe mlitary.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS answered that he believes so. He said it

was a question he'd discussed with the chairmn. He noted that
mlitary personnel are honored on anot her day.

CHAI R CHENAULT nentioned Veterans' Day. He said he wasn't
having a problem with [including in the resolution] the arned

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 3- January 29, 2002



forces because they provided what was requested of them on that
day and other days. He questioned whether the arned forces
shoul d be included in the title, however.

Number 0470

CHAIR CHENAULT informed nenbers that he'd come up wth a
proposed conmmttee substitute (CS). [Prepared by the committee
aide, the proposed CS bore the following title: "Relating to

decl aring Septenmber 11, 2002, as Energency Service Providers and
Armed Forces Appreciation Day and a Day of Comenoration of all
Aneri cans. "]

CHAIR CHENAULT said his "sticking point™ as far as the

resolution is this: on Septenber 11, 2001, energency service
provi ders responded not only at the Wrld Trade Center but also
at the Pentagon. |In addition, he said, the people aboard Flight

93 [which crashed in Pennsylvania after being hijacked] should
be recogni zed; their heroism averted further tragedy and | oss of

Americans' |ives. He proposed that the day of recognition
perhaps should be called Heroes Day. For exanple, there were
heroes of all kinds, whether in public service or in the
mlitary.

CHAIR CHENAULT noted that the proposed CS adds a day of
commenoration of all Americans. He said, however, that he'd be
open to | ooking at options to nake it a better resolution.

Nunmber 0626

REPRESENTATI VE MJRKOWSKI, noting that the proposed CS nentions
firefighters [at the Wrld Trade Center], asked about police who
went in the buildings. She said she was fearful that in trying
to be too specific, the [resolution] may forget [others] who
truly were the heroes - whether volunteers or janitors on duty
who brought people to safety. She agreed with Chair Chenault
that perhaps it should be nore generic in terns of who is being
recogni zed for their contributions and sacrifices.

Nunber 0711

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS offered to namke "nobst of those changes.”
He pointed out, however, that the first "Wereas" clause speaks
of the 343 New York City firefighters lost in the attack. He
suggested that although everyone who participated should be
recogni zed and appreciated, there also is a need to realize that
343 firenmen lost their lives in this attack.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -4- January 29, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE GREEN pointed out that there were many policenen
t 0o.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS offered to mmke any of the suggested
changes.

CHAIR CHENAULT said he didn't know the nunbers, but nentioned
policenmen or other energency service providers who lost their
lives during any of the attacks or rescue attenpts.

Nunmber 0798

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWBKI requested confirmation that this would
not cost nmoney to the state nor be a state holiday, but would
urge the recognition and honoring of those who either lost their
lives or partici pated.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS agreed that there would be no cost and
that it wouldn't be a holiday. He specified that it is just for
one day - Septenber 11, 2002 - to show appreciation for the
sacrifices made.

Nunmber 0887

CHAI R CHENAULT asked whether anyone else wshed to testify;
t here was no response.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS noted that the proposed CS adds wording
about Flight 93, which he said is appropriate.

CHAI R CHENAULT explained that it adds the people on Flight 93
for their courage and willingness to sacrifice their own I|ives
to save others. In addition, it adds "a Day of Comrenoration of
all Anmericans” in the title and in the first "Further Resolved"
secti on.

Number 0973

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked what the intent is regarding the title
[of the proposed CS], which seens extrenely broad and
comenor at es every person in America.

CHAI R CHENAULT indicated "heroes" is the concept he is |ooking
for, although appreciation regarding the energency service
providers and the arnmed forces is part of it. He explained, "If
we are going to do a resolution, and it is to the providers that

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 5- January 29, 2002



provided the rescue efforts in these three areas, ... we are
| ooking at heroes.” He acknowl edged that the title of the
proposed CS may need sone worK.

Nunmber 1103

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWSKI suggested it nmay be nore appropriate in
the title to say sonething like "Declaring Septenber 11, 2002
as a ... day of recognition for those involved in heroics." She
enphasi zed tying it to Septenber 11, 2001. She said it sounds
as if everyone agrees whomto recognize: not just the energency
providers or the National Guard, but the people on the aircraft
and the volunteers. She suggested conmittee staff could perhaps
work with Representative Stevens to fine-tune that |anguage.

Nunmber 1179

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES proposed saying, "Relating to declaring
Sept enber 11, 2002, as First Respondents Appreciation Day [and
so forth]"; he suggested it would address all energency service
peopl e and may enconpass the mlitary. As for the broader sense
of people, however, Representative Hayes said he didn't know.

Nunber 1231

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA posed the followng idea for the title
"Relating to declaring Septenber 11, 2002, as a day in
commenoration of ... thousands of acts of individual heroism®™
The "Whereas" clauses then would bring "everybody" in.

Nunber 1293

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWBKI i ndicated perhaps the primary purpose
of the sponsor's resolution was to recognize energency
provi ders.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT suggested the title was getting too wordy.
REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA of fered to w t hdraw her suggesti on.

Nunber 1305

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS responded that it was a good point,
however . Many people who weren't energency service personnel

di d sonme very heroic things.

Number 1323

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 6- January 29, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE KOIT suggested that it be thought out nore
t horoughly. He proposed having the title be sonmething along the
lines of "An Act declaring Septenber 11, 2002, as Hero
Appreciation Day." In the "Wereas" clauses, then, it could go
into the details, specifying the 343 New York City firefighters
and ot her groups, along with what they did. The title should be
fairly sinple and shouldn't get into too nany details, he added.

Nunmber 1388

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said while he agreed with Representative
Kott, it seens the resolution would lose its focus, which began
wi th the emergency service providers.

Number 1417

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWEKI indicated the resolution could declare
Septenber 11 [2002] as First Responders and O her Heroes Day,
for exanple. She agreed there should be sone recognition of the
energency service providers, but added, "Perhaps |I'm inferring
too nuch fromthe sponsor.”

Number 1450

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN offered another suggestion: "Relating to
decl aring [ Septenber 11, 2002] as Twin Towers Heroes Day."

CHAI R CHENAULT said it would be site-specific, however, and may
require separate [resolutions] for the Pentagon and Flight 93.

Nunber 1480

CHAI R CHENAULT announced that if it met the sponsor's approval
his staff and Representative Stevens' staff would work to cone
up with a title that the commttee could support.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS concurred. [HCR 20 was held over.]

HIR 31 - PONERS OF US SEN EMERGENCY APPO NTMENTS

Number 1544
CHAI R CHENAULT announced the next order of busi ness, HOUSE JO NT

RESOCLUTION NO 31, Relating to requesting the United States
Congress to propose an anendnent to the Constitution of the

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -7- January 29, 2002



United States that would address energency appointnents to and
powers of the United States Senate.

Nunber 1617

REPRESENTATI VE SCOTT OGAN, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of
HIR 31, noted that the U S Constitution is silent on the
subj ect of succession in the case of a national disaster. He
mentioned the unprecedented attack on the nation's capital [on
Septenber 11, 2001], followed by the biological attack [in the

form of anthrax sent by mail] on the offices in the capital. He
said those events brought hone a stark reality: if the United
States were to | ose a ngjor portion of a legislative branch, the
country essentially would be run by martial law until that

| egi sl ative branch coul d be reinstated.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN pointed out that the Seventeenth Amendnent
addresses who succeeds a Senator who is incapacitated, resigns,

or dies; however, it does not give power to the legislature to
"act as a legislative branch.” The Seventeenth Amendnent is
silent on filling appointnents in the House. The result would

be - other than having oversight hearings - an inability to act
or pass legislation, leaving the nation with only two branches
of government: executive and judiciary.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN surmsed that the [witers of the U S]
Constitution never envisioned weapons of nass destruction or
bi ol ogi cal and chem cal weapons. Therefore, partly for the sake
of discussion, HIR 31 suggests that iif Congress becones
dysfuncti onal because of t hese unt hi nkabl e acts, t he
| egi slatures would appoint wthin ten days a new Senate; the
Senate would act as a tenporary uni caneral body, wth the powers
of the [full] legislature, until a House coul d be appoi nt ed.

REPRESENTATIVE OGAN indicated a US. Congressman [l ater
clarified to be Congressman Baird of Wshi ngton] was proposing a
U.S. constitutional anmendnent whereby if the nunber of House
menbers drops below two-thirds [later clarified to be three-
quarters], the states would be allowed to appoint House nenbers
to fill that vacancy. He said, "That's fine. ... There's nore
than one way to skin a cat here on this one.”

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN explained that the idea behind the
resolution was to highlight the fact that the U S. Constitution
does not address this issue and to encourage Congress to do so.
He said it is unfortunate that the country is faced with this
i ssue, but one of the best responses to terrorists' threats is

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 8- January 29, 2002



to guarantee that operation of all three branches of governnent
woul d be functional subsequent to an attack.

Nunmber 1883

CHAI R CHENAULT offered his interpretation that if there were a
catastrophe [in Washington, D.C.] the states would issue wits
for an election to fill the vacanci es. He asked Representative
Qgan if the intent of HIR 31 is to consider having either the
state House or state Senate, rather than the public, decide who
woul d be elected for the short term

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN admitted it has been a pipe dream of his
t hat the legislators would appoint the [U S]] Senat e
replacenents; that was the way it used to be. He stated that he
woul d not object, however, if the resolution were anended to say
that the governor would appoint [the replacenents]; that process
woul d be nore efficient than having to call special sessions of
the | egislature.

Nunber 1975

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN referred to a portion of the Seventeenth
Anmendnent and sai d:

When vacancies happen in the representation of any
state in the Senate, the executive authority of such
state shall issue wits of election to fill such
vacanci es, provided that the legislature of any state
may enpower the executive thereof to nmake tenporary
appointments until the people fill the vacancies by
el ection as the legislature may direct.

REPRESENTATIVE OGAN [referring to the last line] said, "W
recently took sone action on that and vetoed the right a few
days back, or a week or two ago." He stated that the U S.
Constitution does not address House nenbers. He noted that the
nation has lived under the threat of nuclear attack for a |ong
tinme. For exanple, he was trained to dive under his desk [in
school]; the general thinking then, however, was that if there
were a nuclear war, there would be nothing left to govern
anyway. Only recently has there been the possibility that
"these sorts of weapons” would fall into the hands of despots,
tyrants, and terrorists.

Nunber 2062

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 9- January 29, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWSKI asked why the resolution relates to the
Senat e. She stated her conprehension that the privilege was
already in place to address vacancies in the Senate; she cited
the aforenmentioned reference to executive authority to issue
[wits of] election or nmake tenporary appointnents. She offered
her understanding that what is mssing is a procedure for the
U S. House of Representatives. She asked Representative Ogan
for an expl anati on.

Nunber 2114

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN answered that there is nore than one way to
address this issue; he reiterated his previous testinony
regardi ng Congressman [Baird' s] proposed anendnent. He noted
that there are a larger nunber of House nenbers; the process
i nvol ved woul d possibly be nore arduous and, therefore, not as

expedi ent . In the case of a national energency, the nation
needs [to reestablish] an operative legislative branch very
qui ckly. He described his idea, to give tenporary unicamnera

powers to the Senate to act as the body of the |egislature unti
a House could be elected. He surm sed that he was keeping with
the Founding Fathers' idea that Senators have so nuch power and
there are fewer of them therefore, it is nore inperative to
appoint their seats and allow the election process to fill the
House seats. He added that he did not think anyone had
envi sioned that a majority of the House ever would be w ped out,
because there are so many nenbers.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN conceded that Congressman [Baird's] proposa
m ght be a nore practical way to go. He nentioned that words
such as "may" and "mght" are used in the resolution. He stated
his certainty that Congr ess, despite the know edgeabl e
reconmendations of the Alaska State Legislature, may choose
anot her course of action. The idea behind the resolution is to
make U.S. Congress aware of the issue, to generate discussion,
and to suggest - not force - a solution.

Number 2228

REPRESENTATI VE MJURKOABKI referred to a section of HIR 31 that
began on page 2, line 7, and read:

FURTHER RESOLVED t hat the proposed anendnment al so
m ght permt the United States Senate to exercise all
of the powers of the United States Congress if a
majority of the seats in the United States House of
Representatives were to beconme vacant and m ght

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -10- January 29, 2002



establish procedures under which the United States
Senate would tenporarily act as a unicaneral body
unti | vacancies in the United States House of
Representatives are filled.

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWSKI suggested perhaps HIR 31 should focus
on the foregoing because the "accommodation for the vacancy, or
the discussion about how the vacancies are fulfilled, are

included in the anendnent."” She further suggested that the
"Resol ved" clause that talks about filling vacancies m ght not
be needed.

Nunber 2282

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN enphasized the inportance of quickly
restoring a functional third branch of governnent in order to
deal with energencies; that is why it is nore efficient to have
a tenporary unicaneral body. He noted that HIR 31 says this
woul d be done in ten days [on page 2, line 5]. He said it would
be difficult to reappoint the majority of the Senate w thout
al so having to reappoint a majority of the House.

Nunber 2342
REPRESENTATI VE GREEN recalled that in every |egislative session

but the current one, he has introduced legislation to have
Al aska adopt a unicaneral governnent, for reasons he would not

delve into at present. He nmentioned big states versus little
states as the reason the nation has a Senate and House; he
indicated it was a conprom se. He suggested if 230 nenbers of
the House were lost, there still would be nore House nenbers
than Senate nenbers, and the Senate would be acting as a
uni caneral governnent. He stated his concern that "we would
then really be waving a flag saying, " Oh, al | t hose

Representatives that are left are of no account.'"”

Nunber 2398

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN replied that he had no problem with the
suggested | anguage changes. More inportant, he wanted the issue
rai sed so that, hopefully, Congress would consider it and make a
deci si on.

Nunmber 2427

REPRESENTATI VE MJRKOWSKI said she would like to see the
af orenenti oned anendnent by Congressman [Baird] included in HIR

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -11- January 29, 2002



31 as a "Wuereas" clause, to lend the commttee's support to
that |egislation.

Nunber 2461

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN, in response to a request for a description
of the federal Ilegislation, read the following from newy
received information: "Brian Baird of Washington has introduced

a constitutional anmendnent that would all ow governors to appoint
U S House nenbers to 90-day terns in the event that one-
quarter of all Representatives were killed."

Number 2537

CHAIR CHENAULT noted that the Seventeenth Anmendnent provides
that the legislature of the state nay enpower the executive to
make tenporary appointnents. He made reference to |anguage in
HIR 31 begi nning on page 2, line 4, which read:

the legislatures of each of the states with vacant
seats would make appointnents within 10 days to fill
t hose vacanci es;

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN reiterated that |egislators used to appoint
[U S.] Senators; he suggested that Senators therefore used to be
nore accountable to the |egislators. He enphasized that he did
not intend any di sparagenent toward the current del egati on.

Number 2595

REPRESENTATI VE = OGAN, in response to a question from
Representative Kott, clarified that the Seventeenth Anendnent
was passed by Congress on May 13, 1912, and ratified April 8,
1913. As of April 9, 1913, [U S ] Senators were elected, not
appoi nted by the | egislators.

Nunber 2607

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES offered Amendnent 1: On page 2, line 4,
change "l egi sl atures” to "governor".

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES explained that the executive branch is
avai l able year-round, whereas the legislators are part-tine.
G ving the executive branch authority to appoint would avoid the
possible need for a special | egislative session and the
resulting rancor; it would result in an easier, "cleaner"
process within our present system

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -12- January 29, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE OGAN agreed with Anmendnent 1, adding, "I got ny
nonent on the soap box."

Nunmber 2675

CHAI R CHENAULT asked whether there were any objections. There
bei ng no objection, Arendnent 1 was adopt ed.

CHAI R CHENAULT asked whether there was public testinony;, none
was of f ered.

Number 2691

REPRESENTATI VE MJURKOWASKI  expl ai ned her reasoning for a second
anendnent . She referred to | anguage beginning on page 1, line
5, which read, "WHEREAS the terrible events of Septenber 11,
2001, have denonstrated that the United States is vulnerable to
attack by terrorists”. She enphasized the need to recognize
that Septenber 11, 2001, was not the first time the nation has
been attacked by terrorists; for exanple, the Wrld Trade Center
al so was attacked in 1993.

REPRESENTATI VE MJURKOASKI  [npbved to adopt] Amendnent 2 as
follows: On page 1, line 5, change "have denonstrated” to "have
agai n denonstrated"”.

REPRESENTATIVE OGAN replied that he was anenable to that
anmendnent. He noted that the English had at one tine burned the
White House, so [terrorisn has been going on for a long tine.

Nunber 2751

CHAI R CHENAULT asked whether there were any objections. There
bei ng no objection, Arendnent 2 was adopt ed.

Nunber 2761

REPRESENTATI VE MJURKOABKI began di scussion of a possible third
anmendnent . She indicated the third "Wereas" clause and
referred to Representative Ogan's testinony that the [U S ]
Constitution is "silent" regarding the succession in question.
She noted that the term "inadequate"” is used in the resolution
[ page 1, lines 9-12], which read:

VWHEREAS the Constitution of the United States has
procedures that are inadequate to enable the United

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -13- January 29, 2002



States Congress to continue to function if a majority
of its seats were to becone vacant due to an attack on
the Unite States or as a result of a natural disaster
or other energency;...

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWSBKI asked if it would be better to say that
the U S Constitution is "silent" on it. She surm sed that the
end result would be the sane. She requested Representative
Qgan' s i nput.

Number 2801
REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said he wouldn't object to her suggestion

He reiterated his nmain intent, to present the issue before
Congress, where any "hairsplitting"” could be done.

Nunber 2818

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWSKI noved to adopt conceptual Anendnment 3
regarding the aforenentioned |anguage [page 1, lines 9-12], to
reflect that the procedures are silent with regard to filling

the vacancies in the event of a natural disaster or other
attack.

Nunber 2841

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN clarified that the resolution should still
state that [the U S. Constitution's procedures] are silent in
regard to Congress's continuing to function, for exanple. He
asked Representative Miurkowski if that was her intention.
REPRESENTATI VE MURKOASKI answered in the affirmative.

Nunber 2870

CHAI R CHENAULT asked whether there was any objection. There
bei ng no objection, conceptual Amendnent 3 was adopt ed.

Nunmber 2887

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN stated that he wanted to think about the
"uni caneral " issue, |lest there be "m schief."

Number 2912

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked to address that coment and stated
that he found it interesting. He noted that he and

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -14- January 29, 2002



Representative G een have found thensel ves on opposite sides of
the unicaneral issue in the legislature and now on this [issue]
as well. He mentioned efficiency and suggested that [HIR 31]
could specify that within 90 days a House would be elected; he
said that may "tinme" with what Congressman Baird is doing. He
added that at least [the |anguage of the resolution could be
witten such that] a third branch [of governnent] could quickly
be functional.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN offered his belief that the [U S ] Senate
decl ares war, not both houses. He questioned whether the Senate
could pass bills to get noney to fund a war effort, for exanple,
and stated his belief that the nation would be crippled if it
did not have both houses functioning, or have tenporary power in
one house.

TAPE 02-6, SIDE B
Nunber 2971

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN nentioned 90 days to appoint a house and
said it was "just another spin, another thing for them to
consider when they deliberate the issue in Congressman Baird's
bill." He suggested a hybrid of both approaches may be the
final outcone.

Nunber 2957
REPRESENTATI VE KOTT said the foll ow ng:

You are correct: It is the US. Senate that issues
the declaration of war; however, | mght add that
absent t hat decl arati on, the President, [ under]
Article I, has the power to basically do the sane .
by using the War Powers  Act. Certainly, under his
energency powers [or] provisions, he could put forces
in place or do sonme things that perhaps the Congress
would do if they were there.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT indicated it really gets down to the issue
of whether it is wunicaneral. For exanple, if an act were
commtted that wiped out the U S. Senate except for Al aska's two
Senators, there would be tw Senators left and 435 House
menbers. He asked:

Wul d, then, the House, in unison wth our two

Senators, act as a caneral |egislature? Wuld that be
envi sioned, or would we then not bring governnent to a

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -15- January 29, 2002



halt, awaiting the appointnments ... wthin the ten
days? ... Wuld, then, we wait for ten days for the
other 98 Senators to be appointed, or would we then
envision the House acting in unison wth our two
Senators in that caneral |egislature, or Congress?

Nunber 2873

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN responded that it was a good question. The
constitution gives the governor the power to reappoint, but
doesn't set a tine limt; he surmsed that the task would be
done quickly, however. He asked the commttee to imagine the
wor st - case scenario, when suddenly there is no |egislative body
to keep the President in check. He nentioned the War Powers
Act, which allows the President to [nake decisions regarding
nati onal defense]. He said it is inperative that the checks-
and- bal ances system of our nation be kept intact.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN rem nded nenbers of his hope that the
resolution would generate discussion and elicit a solution [in
Congr ess] . He concluded, "I think the sanctity of our way of
life and our liberties and our country need to be protected with
this."”

Nunmber 2782

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWSKI began di scussion of what would becone
Amendnent 4.  She brought attention to page 1, lines 13-15, and
page 2, lines 1-2, which read:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Alaska State Legislature
that the Congress of the United States is respectfully
requested to propose and subnit to the states an
amendnent to the Constitution of the United States
that would establish procedures to ensure that the
United States Congress will continue to function after
ener genci es whi ch cause many vacancies in the body ...

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWSBKI pr oposed t hat t he f or egoi ng
encapsul ates all that is necessary to address in the resol ution.
She expressed appreciation of the concern of establishing a
deadl i ne, however. Agreeing that [Congress] would figure out
the details anyway, she suggested the commttee need not spend
time discussing the unicaneral -versus-bicaneral issue. The one
"Resol ved" clause would be sufficient if the commttee wanted to
say, in effect, "Congress, address this, because it's inportant
and we, the State of Al aska, recognize that it's inportant.”

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -16- January 29, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE KOIT responded that Representative Miurkowski's
i dea was exactly what he'd been | ooking for.

Nunmber 2481

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOASKI noved to adopt Anendnment 4, renoving
the two ["Further Resolved" clauses] frompage 2, |ines [3-11].
Number 2659

[ There was an objection for purposes of discussion.]

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN indicated he and Representative Ogan both
are fond of the Tenth Anmendnent. He asked whether all the
states would have to ratify [a proposed anendnent to the U'S
Constitution] to give Congress the authority.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN offered his belief that it would require a
two-thirds vote of the U S. Congress and that three-quarters of
the states would have to ratify it. He asked his staff to
review his notes to verify that.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said he thought it was correct. He noted
that the conmttee could submt this resolution, but by the tine
[a proposed anmendnent] cane back from the federal governnent, a
different state legislature could be in place. He conpared it
to when [President Wodrow] WIson chanpioned the League of
Nations but his own Congress would not support it. He pondered
whether, if [HIR 31] were sent to Congress, it would be left to
t he next state | egi sl ature to ratify [ any pr oposed
constitutional anmendnent passed by Congress as a result].

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN suggested his own resolution is just asking
Congress to think about it. He agreed it would be up to a
future legislature to ratify [any such anendnent]. He suggested
per haps, because of [the terrorist attacks of Septenber 11,
2001], Congress would pass a resolution expeditiously and
| egi sl ators everywhere would get onboard with addressing this.
He pointed out that if Congress doesn't do a good job on a
[ proposed anendnent], then three-quarters of the states woul dn't
[ratify] it.

Number 2484

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT agreed that it would require three-fourths
of the states for ratification. He offered his belief that it

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -17- January 29, 2002



nmust happen within seven - perhaps six - years. He stated his
certainty that Congress would do what it thought best. He
menti oned the Connecticut Conprom se and the system of checks
and bal ances; he said the states want to have their interests
| ooked out for. He noted that another option is a
[constitutional] convention for ratification. He said the
amendnent process is the only way "to get from there to the
future." He stated that he is now supportive of HIR 31.

Nunber 2409

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWSKI poi nted out that adoption of [Anendnent
4] woul d affect [Amendnent 1].

CHAI R CHENAULT specified that [if Anmendnent 4] were adopted,
Amendnent 1 would be "deleted" and Amendnents 2 and 3 would
[remain].

Number 2375

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said he had no objection, but mght be
tenpted to reoffer this [deleted section as an anendnent] on the
floor "just for the sake of the intelligent discussion that
we' ve had here today."

Nunmber 2358

CHAIR CHENAULT asked whether there was any objection to
Amendnent 4. There being no objection, Arendnent 4 was adopted.

Nunmber 2338
REPRESENTATI VE KOTT referred to [page 1, lines 5-6], which read:
WHEREAS the terrible events of Septenber 11,
2001, have denonstrated that the United States is

vul nerable to attack by terrorists;

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT asked whether "was" should be changed to

"is". Noting that perhaps $34 million has been invested in
"honel and security,” he said he hoped the public thought it was
noney well spent and that the nation was |ess vul nerable. He
pondered whether the nation is still vulnerable and said he
would like to think it is not. In response to a comment by

Representative Green, Representative Kott articulated that [the
nation's people] don't know what all has been done, but probably
many thi ngs have been done behind the scenes. He said he didn't

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 18- January 29, 2002



want to send a nessage to the terrorists that the nation is
still wvul nerable.

Nunber 2283

REPRESENTATI VE MJRKOWSKI pointed out that if the nation was
vul nerabl e previously but [the resolution] says it no |onger is,
this resolution requesting an anmendnent to the U S. Constitution
is no | onger necessary.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT concurred wth regard to terrorists;
however, natural disasters are included, which "brings in
anot her paraneter that we haven't really discussed, and | think,
probably, we shouldn't at this point." He concl uded by saying
he was satisfied with the resol ution. In response to a coment
by Chair Chenault, he offered to nove the resol ution.

Nunber 2257

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN nentioned information in the packet stating
that President Bush has, through an executive order, fornmalized
l i nes of succession for seven Cabinet departnents, denonstrating
that the federal governnent is painfully aware of the threats of
terrorism He stated his belief that there is no way, as a free

society, that [the US.] wll ever be invulnerable. He
paraphrased a statenent by Benjamn Franklin that read, "Those
who would give up essential Liberty, to purchase a little

tenporary Safety, deserve neither Liberty nor Safety."”

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said he would rather see these neasures put
into place; he nentioned taking risks such as flying in an
airplane and being televised during public commttee neetings,
the latter of which nay raise the ire of sonebody who wants to
see the destruction of our country. He referred to the sponsor
statenent and said it suggests that "one of the best ways to

guarantee our liberties is to have a continued operation of our
republic the way it was designed."” Representative Qgan
concluded that [the U S.] wll never be able to stop soneone

bent on his own destruction as well as that of the US. He said
that is the price [Anericans] pay for liberties, and Al aska can
do its part to ensure that the republic continues to stand.

Nunber 2148

REPRESENTATI VE MJURKOWABKI referred to the title and pointed out
that no reference is mde to "energency appointnments” in

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -19- January 29, 2002



Amendnent 4; rather, it is to the establishnent of procedures to
allow for the continuity of governnent operation.

Nunber 2091

REPRESENTATI VE MJRKOWASKI noved to adopt conceptual Amendnent 5,
to conformthe title to the previously adopted anendnents.

CHAI R CHENAULT asked whether there were any objections. There
bei ng no objection, conceptual Amendnent 5 was adopt ed.

Nunber 2073

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT noved to report HIR 31, as anended, out of
conm ttee.

Number 2052

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN objected, specifying that he wanted to
consider further what "mschief" could be caused by the
resolution in conflict with the Tenth Amendnent [to the U S
Constitution].

Number 2026

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT suggested that the resolution be referred to
the House Judiciary Standing Conmttee. He added his belief
that there is no great urgency as long as it noves this
| egi sl ati ve session.

REPRESENTATI VE CGREEN responded that he would be able to satisfy
his concerns by the next commttee neeting. He said he
chanpions the Tenth Amendnent and had not | ooked previously at
the resolution as it relates to that.

Number 1972

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said, "There's always the anmendnent process
on the floor, and I"'msure it would be a lively and intellectual
di scussion there too." He enphasized that he did not feel
"ownershi p" of the |anguage of the resolution; rather, he sinply
wanted the issue to be brought before [Congress].

Number 1952

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES suggested it may be nore appropriate to
assign the resolution to a subcomrittee in order to address

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 20- January 29, 2002



Representative Geen's concerns. He pointed out t hat
Representative Geen isn't on the House Judiciary Standing
Conmittee.

CHAIR CHENAULT said the committee could follow that |I|ine of
action or recomend a House Judiciary Standing Conmttee
referral and nove the resol ution out.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN noted that [a House Judiciary Standing
Commttee referral] would delay the resolution nore.

A roll call vote was taken. Represent ati ves Masek, Mirkowski,
Kott, Cissna, and Chenault voted to report HIR 31, as anended,
from commttee. Representati ves Green and Hayes voted agai nst

it. Therefore, CSHIR 31(M.V) was noved from the House Speci al
Commttee on Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs conmttee by a vote
of 5-2.

REPRESENTATIVE OGAN invited committee nenbers to discuss the
resolution with him to address concerns before it went to the
[ House State Affairs Standing Commttee]. [CSHIR 31(M.V) was
noved from conmittee. ]

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Commttee on Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs neeting was
adj ourned at 4:19 p.m

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -21- January 29, 2002



